
 
Herbert Warehouse 

The Docks 
Gloucester 
GL1 2EQ 

Friday, 1 November 2013 
TO EACH MEMBER OF GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
You are hereby summoned to attend a MEETING OF THE COUNCIL of the CITY OF 
GLOUCESTER to be held at the Civic Suite, North Warehouse, The Docks, Gloucester, 
GL1 2EP on Monday, 11th November 2013 at 18:00 hours for the purpose of transacting 
the following business:  

AGENDA 
1. APOLOGIES    
 
 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 To receive from Members, declarations of the existence of any disclosable 

pecuniary, or non-pecuniary, interests and the nature of those interests in relation to 
any agenda item. Please see Agenda Notes. 
 

3. SUSPENSION OF COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULES    
 
 To waive Council Procedure Rules to allow the relevant Officers to address the 

Council in respect of item 4 on the agenda. 
 

4. LLANTHONY SECUNDA PRIORY  (Pages 1 - 68)  
 
 To receive the report of the Chief Executive on the called-in decision from Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee concerning the release of covenants relating to Llanthony 
Secunda Priory (LSP. 
 
 

 
Yours sincerely 

 
................................................... 
Julian Wain 
Chief Executive 



 

2 

 



NOTES 
 

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
The duties to register, disclose and not to participate in respect of any matter in which a 
member has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest are set out in Chapter 7 of the Localism Act 
2011. 
 

Disclosable pecuniary interests are defined in the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012 as follows – 
 

Interest 
 

Prescribed description 
 

Employment, office, trade, 
profession or vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation 
carried on for profit or gain. 
 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit 
(other than from the Council) made or provided within the 
previous 12 months (up to and including the date of 
notification of the interest) in respect of any expenses 
incurred by you carrying out duties as a member, or 
towards your election expenses. This includes any payment 
or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning of 
the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 
1992. 
 

Contracts Any contract which is made between you, your spouse or 
civil partner or person with whom you are living as a spouse 
or civil partner (or a body in which you or they have a 
beneficial interest) and the Council 
(a)   under which goods or services are to be provided or 

works are to be executed; and 
(b)   which has not been fully discharged 
 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the Council’s 
area. 
 

For this purpose “land” includes an easement, servitude, 
interest or right in or over land which does not carry with it a 
right for you, your spouse, civil partner or person with whom 
you are living as a spouse or civil partner (alone or jointly 
with another) to occupy the land or to receive income. 
 

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in 
the Council’s area for a month or longer. 
 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) – 
(a)   the landlord is the Council; and 
(b)   the tenant is a body in which you, your spouse or civil 

partner or a person you are living with as a spouse or 
civil partner has a beneficial interest 

 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where – 
(a)   that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business 

or land in the Council’s area and 



 

4 

(b)   either – 
i.   The total nominal value of the securities exceeds 

£25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that body; or 

ii.   If the share capital of that body is of more than one 
class, the total nominal value of the shares of any 
one class in which you, your spouse or civil partner 
or person with whom you are living as a spouse or 
civil partner has a beneficial interest exceeds one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that 
class. 

 

For this purpose, “securities” means shares, debentures, 
debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective 
investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial 
Services and Markets Act 2000 and other securities of any 
description, other than money 
deposited with a building society. 
 

NOTE: the requirements in respect of the registration and disclosure of Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests and withdrawing from participating in respect of any matter 
where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest apply to your interests and those 
of your spouse or civil partner or person with whom you are living as a spouse or 
civil partner where you are aware of their interest. 

 

Access to Information 

Agendas and reports can be viewed on the Gloucester City Council website: 
www.gloucester.gov.uk and are available to view five working days prior to the meeting 
date. 
 

For further details and enquiries about this meeting please contact Penny Williams, 01452 
396125, penny.williams@gloucester.gov.uk . 
 

For general enquiries about Gloucester City Council’s meetings please contact Democratic 
Services, 01452 396126, democratic.services@gloucester.gov.uk. 
 

If you, or someone you know cannot understand English and need help with this 
information, or if you would like a large print, Braille, or audio version of this information 
please call 01452 396396. 

 

FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the 
building by the nearest available exit. You will be directed to the nearest exit by council 
staff. It is vital that you follow their instructions:  
� You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts; 
� Do not stop to collect personal belongings; 
� Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building; gather at the 

assembly point in the car park and await further instructions; 
� Do not re-enter the building until told by a member of staff or the fire brigade that it is 

safe to do so. 



Meeting: Council

Cabinet

Date: 11th November 2013 

11th November 2013 

Subject: Llanthony Secunda Priory 

Report Of: Chief Executive 

Wards Affected: All

Key Decision: No Budget/Policy Framework: No

Contact Officer: Julian Wain, Chief Executive 

Email: julian.wain@gloucester.gov.uk Tel: 396200 

Appendices: A) Cabinet report – 11th September 2013 

B) Overview and Scrutiny call-in decision – 14th October 2013 

C) List of heritage assets 

D) S.106 agreement 

E) Transfer document 

F) Option agreement 

G) Llanthony Secunda Priory Trust’s position statement 

1.0 Purpose of Report 

1.1 To receive the called in decision on the release of covenants relating to Llanthony 
Secunda Priory (LSP) from Overview and Scrutiny Committee, and to agree a way 
forward on this matter. 

2.0 Recommendations 

2.1 Council is asked to RESOLVE:

a) Which of the options at paragraph 3.8 Council wishes to approve; 

b) To discharge the 2004 Section106 agreement; 

c) That authority be delegated to the Chief Executive and the Head of Legal and 
Policy Development, in consultation with Leader to negotiate and sign any 
documents necessary to effect the decision of Council. 

and to RECOMMEND to Cabinet: 

d) Which parts of the Option agreement should be removed and whether or not 
such removal is conditional on changes being made to the Trust’s Memorandum 
and Articles of Association; 

e) What amendments should be made to the Transfer agreement; 

Agenda Item 4Page 1



f) That the Trust’s reasonable legal fees in effecting any necessary changes to the 
relevant documents be paid by the Council; 

g) That authority be delegated to the Chief Executive and the Head of Legal and 
Policy Development, in consultation with the Leader to negotiate and sign any 
documents necessary to effect the decision of Council. 

2.2 Cabinet is asked to RESOLVE, subject to consideration of any views expressed by 
Council: 

a) Which parts of the Option agreement should be removed and whether or not 
such removal is to be conditional on changes being made to the Trust’s 
Memorandum of Articles of Association; 

b) What amendments should be made to the Transfer agreement; 

c) That the Trust’s reasonable legal fees in effecting any necessary changes to the 
relevant documents be paid by the Council; 

d) That authority be delegated to the Chief Executive and the Head of Legal and 
Policy Development, in consultation with the Leader to negotiate and sign any 
documents necessary to effect the decision of Cabinet. 

3.0 Background and Key Issues 

3.1 On 11th September Cabinet received a report recommending the removal of 
restrictive covenants contained within the transfer agreement (attached at Appendix 
E) and the S.106 agreement relating to LSP (attached at Appendix D).  The Cabinet 
report is attached as Appendix A.  Cabinet agreed the report in the terms set out 
below:

1) The restrictive covenants be removed in accordance with the request from the 
Llanthony Secunda Priory Trust (LSPT). 

2) Planning Committee be requested to vary the S.106 agreement relating to the 
property.

3) The resolutions in (1) and (2) above be subject to agreeing a provision for 
continuing public access to the property and that the City Council shall have the 
continued right to nominate a Trustee. 

3.2 However, the decision was called in by Councillor Hilton with the requisite number 
of supporters.  The call-in was heard by Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 14th

October and the matter referred to Council.  The call-in decision is attached as 
Appendix B. 

3.3 The call-in has been referred to Council as Overview and Scrutiny Committee was 
of the view that the decision of Cabinet on 11th September 2013 was contrary to the 
policy set by Council when it decided to transfer the Priory site to the LSPT in 2006, 
in particular, the Council decision to secure reversion of the site to the Council if the 
Trust failed.  It was also suggested that Cabinet had insufficient information on 
which to reach the decision it reached. 

Page 2



3.4 Article 4 of the Constitution does not specifically identify decisions in relation to the 
Priory land as being reserved to Council and decisions in relation to the site are not 
therefore considered by the Council’s Monitoring Officer to be part of the Council’s 
Policy Framework.  Any decisions which are not reserved to Council are for the 
Executive to take (i.e. Cabinet, individual Cabinet Members or Officers acting under 
delegated powers). 

3.5 However, it is not clear from the Council report and minutes of the decision in 2006 
to transfer the land to the Trust whether or not Council intended to reserve any 
future decisions on this matter itself and it appears to be in the public interest to 
have the matter widely debated.  This is one of the reasons why the Chief Executive 
and the Monitoring Officer concluded that the call-in request was valid. 

3.6 Since the call-in, matters have moved on and further advice has been obtained. 
Further information is now available, the Trust’s position has been updated and 
alternative options are being presented. 

3.7 The Council’s role on call-in is to consider whether or not Cabinet’s decisions are in 
accordance with the budget and policy framework and Council normally has a 
number of options in relation to call-in.  These are to: 

3.7.1 Agree with Overview and Scrutiny Committee that the decision taken by 
Cabinet was contrary to the Council’s policy framework and then either: 

a) amend the Council’s policy to encompass the decision made by 
Cabinet, in which case the original Cabinet decision stands; or 

b) require Cabinet to reconsider the matter in accordance with the policy 
framework;

3.7.2 Disagree with Overview and Scrutiny that the Cabinet decision was contrary 
to the policy framework and endorse the decision taken by Cabinet; or 

3.7.3 Disagree with Overview and Scrutiny that the Cabinet decision was contrary 
to the policy framework and refer the decision back to Cabinet with Council’s 
comments.

3.8 The complication in this particular case is that Council is not now just being asked to 
consider a call-in of Cabinet’s decision, but is also being asked to consider 
additional information and options and the revised position of the Trust. For this 
reason, the advice of the Monitoring Officer is that Council has the following options 
in this particular case: 

3.8.1 If Council is of the view that its decision in 2006 amounted to a ‘policy’ 
decision, then it can either

a) amend its policy position to encompass the original decision taken by 
Cabinet, or

b) amend its policy position to allow for the updated requests being made by 
the Trust and refer the matter back to Cabinet to take a decision in light of 
the amended policy position.

Page 3



3.8.2 If Council is of the view that its decision in 2006 did not amount to a ‘policy’ 
decision, it can still refer the decision back to Cabinet with its comments in 
light of the current information. 

3.9 Discharge of the S.106 agreement would ordinarily fall within Planning Committee’s 
Terms of Reference. However, Council can choose to exercise these powers itself 
and, in the case of the current matter, it would be helpful for Council to consider the 
S.106 aspect at the same time as it considers the land aspect, as both are 
interlinked.  The Council’s Planning Code of Practice requires that Members are 
trained in planning before they determine planning applications.  Whilst the 
discharge of a S.106 agreement is arguably not a ‘planning application’, it would be 
advisable for relevant Members to receive appropriate planning training and this will 
be arranged in advance of the meeting. 

4.0 Matters for Consideration 

4.1 Llanthony Secunda Priory

4.1.1 The Priory lies to the south of the city centre, adjacent to the Gloucester 
and Sharpness Canal next to Gloucestershire College, and in the midst of 
the Gloucester Quays mixed use regeneration scheme.  It was established 
by Augustinian monks fleeing from their attacked priory in Wales, and has 
had a rich and varied history from times of prosperity to times of misuse and 
neglect.  The Council acquired the site in 1975 and held it until 2007, 
protecting the site from almost certain destruction and investing significant 
sums in repairs and protection measures, but without achieving significant 
enhancement, regeneration or any lasting solution. 

4.1.2 For much of the time that the Council held the Priory it was constrained by 
its context, as it was surrounded by low grade and unsightly land uses 
which made it an unlikely site for heritage or amenity purposes.  However, 
the biggest difficulty was that the Council could not raise the major capital 
investment required to restore the buildings, particularly as some grant 
sources were denied to it as a local authority. 

4.1.3 The surviving buildings are of national significance and include the grade 1 
Mediaeval two-storey roofed ‘Range’ between Outer and Inner Courts.  The 
building is known as the ‘Priory Lodgings’ and has an attached Grade 2 
Listed Victorian Farmhouse.  This is the central focal heritage building in the 
site.  In addition, there are five sets of Grade 1 listed remains, all protected 
as a scheduled ancient monument.  The full list of heritage assets is 
attached at Appendix C. 

4.2 The S.106 agreement

4.2.1 As members are aware much change and regeneration has been effected 
in the area of the Priory in recent years, the most significant of which was 
the building of the new college.  Planning permission for this was granted in 
September 2004 and it was considered that the development would 
enhance the setting of the listed buildings and the scheduled ancient 
monument.  In October 2004, a S.106 agreement was entered into between 
Gloscat, as they were then known, British Waterways Board (BWB), and the 

Page 4



Council (acting as both Local Planning Authority and Land owner).  Gloscat 
was the developer of the land and British Waterways Board was the owner 
of the land, for the purposes of the S.106 agreement.  This S.106 
agreement, which was intended to begin the process of bringing the priory 
back into use, is attached at Appendix D. 

4.2.2 There are three significant and relevant parts to the agreement.  Part 1 
gives the Council the right to hire college facilities built on the land for a 
minimum of 12 days per annum (toilet, car parking, surveillance etc).  

4.2.3 Under Part 2, the Council permits BWB to use the Priory grounds for 
educational and recreational purposes, in a manner sensitive to the 
character of the Priory for so long as the college development is occupied 
for educational purposes and grants a right to BWB to pass and repass over 
Priory grounds. 

4.2.4 Part 3 commits BWB to using reasonable endeavours to work with the 
Council to secure a management agreement comprised of a strategy 
between BWB and the Council, for beneficial use of the Priory for the 
citizens of Gloucester and the future use and preservation of the Priory. 

4.2.5 Since the S.106 agreement was entered into, Gloscat has become bound 
by the S.106 agreement obligations relating to BWB. 

4.3 The establishment of the Trust

4.3.1 Council agreed to sell the land to the Trust in February 2006, resolving to 
keep a budget to sustain the Trust in the early years and for a covenant to 
be imposed so that, if the Trust failed, ownership of the site and grounds 
would revert to the Council. 

4.3.2 The Trust was incorporated as a company in February 2007 and, in May, 
correspondence between Council officers and the Trust clearly shows that 
the Council was of the view that it must have a “guaranteed executive two 
person presence on the Trust at all times” and that it was agreed that this 
would consist of an elected Member and a senior Council officer. 

4.3.3 The Trust’s objects were changed in May of that year to read as follows: 

 The objects of the Trust are to preserve for the benefit of the people of 
Gloucestershire and of the nation the historical architectural and 
constructional heritage that may exist in and around Gloucestershire in 
buildings (including any structure or erection and any part of a building) 
of particular beauty or historical architectural or constructional interest. 

 In particular to manage, restore and preserve for the benefit of the public 
Llanthony Secunda Priory in the City of Gloucester. 

 To advance the education of the public in the historical, architectural and 
constructional heritage in Gloucester, in particular the Llanthony Secunda 
Priory building. 

Page 5



4.3.4 The Trust was granted charitable status in June 2007. The Trust is a 
charitable trust, established as a company limited by guarantee. 

4.3.5 Following the flooding of July that year, the Council meeting of 26th July 
2007 was cancelled, so the Chief Executive used his urgency powers to 
take a decision that: 

1) The freehold of Llanthony Secunda Priory be transferred to the Trust 
and a ‘perpetuity’ of 21 years for reversion to the Council be agreed. 

2) To support the provision stating that the Council will have an option not 
an obligation to buy back the priory in the event of the Trust’s failure. 

3) To endorse and note the appointment of Councillor Martyn White and 
Philip Staddon as Directors of the LSP Charitable Trust. 

4.3.6 This decision was subsequently endorsed by Council in September and the 
land transferred and the option agreement completed in November 2007.  A 
small dowry was provided for the first few years. 

4.4 The transfer document and the option agreement

4.4.1 A copy of the transfer document and option agreement is at Appendix E and 
F.

4.4.2 The property was transferred subject to, and with the benefit of, the 2004 
S.106 agreement (Appendix D).  The LSPT covenanted with the Council to 
observe and perform the S.106 obligations insofar as they related to the 
property and to indemnify the City Council against claims for breach of 
those obligations.  In terms of the Council’s use of the property, the transfer 
required the LSPT to allow the Council to make use of the property for a 
minimum of 12 days and a maximum of 20 days per annum.  The LSPT 
also covenanted not to use the property for any purpose other than the 
preservation of an historical building and site including culture education 
and recreational access for the public. 

4.4.3 The Council, by the terms of the option agreement, has an option to 
repurchase the property at a price of one pound if certain trigger events 
take place.  These trigger events are: 

 insolvency of the Trust; 

 a failure to keep the property clean and tidy; 

 a deterioration in the condition of the property; 

 removal and non-replacement of the City Council’s Directors.

Additionally, the Trust cannot transfer, lease, agree to lease, charge 
mortgage or grant easements within the perpetuity period (21 years). 

Page 6



4.5 The Trust Board

4.5.1 The current trustees are:

 Jeremy Williamson  

 Sir Henry Elwes, KCVO 

 Sarah Gilbert 

 Paul Toleman 

 Elizabeth Griffiths 

 Graham Howell 

 Philip Staddon 

 Martyn White 

 Peter Evans 

 Ian Stainburn 

4.6 Progress of the restoration

4.6.1 LSPT has matured and achieved some success.  It has to date invested 
around £350,000 and removed a number of grade 1 Listed buildings from 
the national ‘at risk’ register.  It has undertaken some extensive site 
clearance work around the heritage structures and around the pond.  It has 
developed strong links with neighbours, both businesses and residents, as 
well as the College.  There has been significant local volunteer input. 

4.6.2 The Trust has now developed a major heritage project for which it seeks 
funding, in particular, from the Heritage Lottery fund.  The project proposes 
the restoration and reuse of the main range which would then be let to 
Gloscol to use the space for a variety of learning activities.  The rent for this 
would provide the core funding for maintenance of the site in the longer 
term.

4.6.3 An interpretation centre would be developed in the stable block in which it is 
proposed to develop a programme of events, including commercial hires, 
the revenue from which will further support the site’s running costs and 
activities.

4.7 The request for release of the obligations and the rationale

4.7.1 The Trust believes that, in order for the project to succeed, they need to be 
released from the obligations of the 2004 S.106 agreement and the transfer 
and option agreements. 

4.7.2 As far as the S.106 agreement is concerned, while it made sense at the 
time, the events obligation has not been used, and the Council has never 
called on the use of Gloscol facilities for events.  Events that have taken 
place at the Priory have been put on by the Trust.  The obligation predates 
the establishment of the LSPT which wishes to have exclusive use of the 
grounds for events, in order to generate funds for its activities.  Finally, the 
proposal to grant Gloscol a new lease of the restored mediaeval range 
complex signals a new chapter in the life of the Priory and will provide the 
Trust significant income.  It is proposed to grant a new deed of easement to 
allow Gloscol access across the Priory. 

Page 7



4.7.3 In the transfer, the restrictive covenant that prevents, amongst other things, 
the grant of a lease, prevents the securing of income to sustain running 
costs in future. Secondly, the option agreement is difficult for LSPT from the 
perspective of prospective tenants, may be unattractive to other potential 
funders and could in itself prevent the securing of mortgages or grants 
against the property.  Given the maturity and success to date of the Trust, 
this does feel at this time an unnecessary provision.  Finally, the Trust 
originally requested the removal of the Council’s right to nominate trustees 
or directors.  However, by the time of the Cabinet decision they had already 
conceded this point while noting that it was important to have the right 
balance of skill sets on the Trust. 

4.7.4 Your officers advised, and continue to advise that the Trust’s case is 
sensibly based and that there is no need for these restrictions at this point 
in time. 

4.8 The requirements of members at Overview and Scrutiny Committee

4.8.1 The discussion at Overview and Scrutiny Committee, confirmed by 
subsequent conversations with Group Leaders, indicates that the three 
areas where Scrutiny still required agreement with the Trust were: 

1) The maintenance of public access to the Priory Grounds. 

2) The continued right of the Council to appoint Directors. 

3) Most importantly, the opportunity for the Priory to revert to the Council 
in the event of the Trust failing. 

4.9 Charity Law

4.9.1 External legal advice has been sought from Veale Wasbrough Vizards LLP 
on how charity law interacts with the restrictions in the Option agreement, in 
particular the option for transfer of the Priory land back to the Council if a 
Trigger Event occurs and the restriction on selling, leasing or otherwise 
disposing of the Priory land.  A number of scenarios are set out below to 
explain the consequences of potential decisions on this matter. 

4.9.2 If the Option remains in place and there is a Trigger Event

1) The Option would be in place until 2028. If a Trigger Event within the 
definition in paragraph 1.1.9 of the Option Agreement during this period, 
the Council could seek to exercise the Option.

2) Part 7 of the Charities Act 2011 (the "2011 Act") would apply to the 
disposal of the Property by the Trust. Guidance issued by the Charity 
Commission in CC28 indicates that the grant of an option is not in itself 
a disposal of land but is rather an agreement to dispose. The disposal 
does not take place unless and until the option is exercised and a sale 
is completed.  However, the Guidance indicates that Trustees should 
normally comply with the requirements in Part 7 before granting the 
option. If they do not do so, it will not usually be possible to comply with 

Page 8



these requirements when the time comes to complete following the 
exercise of the option, and it will then be necessary to obtain an Order 
from the Charity Commission before the sale can be completed. There 
is no suggestion that the Charity Commission was involved at the time 
of the Option Agreement and it therefore appears that no consent was 
obtained to the grant of the Option.

3) If the Council were to seek to exercise the Option, the Trustees of the 
Trust would need to comply with the restrictions in Part 7 of the 2011 
Act. Part 7 provides that if the disposal is to a 'connected person', the 
disposal can only take place if it is authorised by an Order of the Charity 
Commission. The definition of 'connected person' under the 2011 Act 
includes "a person who is the donor of any land to the charity." On the 
basis that the transfer of the Property to the Trust would be treated as a 
gift of land to the Trust, the Council would be a 'connected person' for 
these purposes so that a transfer of the Property to the Council 
following the exercise of the Option could only take place if it was first 
authorised by an Order of the Charity Commission.  This would be the 
case even if the Council were to pay full value for the Property.

4) The Option Agreement provides at paragraph 3 that the Trust "shall not 
transfer, agree to transfer, lease, agree to lease, charge, mortgage or 
grant any easement or otherwise deal with or dispose of the Property 
during the Option Period." This means that during the Option Period, 
the Property could not be sold to meet the liabilities of the Trust if it 
were to be dissolved. After the expiry of the Option Period, or if the 
Option is removed, there would be no such restriction so that the 
Property could potentially be sold to meet the liabilities of the Trust.  
The provisions in the Option Agreement and the Transfer to the 
Council, including in particular the restrictions on use (clause 11.4 of the 
Transfer), may mean that it would be difficult for the Trust to sell the 
Property to a person to be used for commercial purposes.  

4.9.3 If the Option agreement is removed

1)   If the Option is removed and the Trust becomes insolvent, the Trust 
would be wound up in accordance with its Memorandum and Articles of 
Association. The dissolution clause in the Memorandum and Articles of 
Association of the Trust provide that: 

"If the Trust is dissolved, the assets (if any) remaining after provision 
has been made for its liabilities must be applied in one of more of the 
following ways:

(a) By transfer to one of more other bodies established for exclusively 
charitable purposes within the same as or similar to the Objects [of 
the Trust]. 

(b) Directly for the Objects or charitable purposes within or similar to 
the Objects [of the Trust]. 

(c) In such other manner consistent with charitable status as the 
Commission approve in writing in advance." 

Page 9



2) It is clear from the wording of the dissolution clause that assets are to 
be applied first in meeting the liabilities of the Trust. After the expiry of 
the Option Period, or if the Option were removed, there would be no 
such restriction, so that the Property could potentially be sold by the 
Trust as long as they could comply with the restrictions on disposal of 
land in Part 7 of the 2011 Act. In essence, these restrictions mean that 
they would need to obtain a qualified surveyor's report and having 
considered that report be satisfied that the proposed terms were the 
best that could reasonably be obtained.

3) The Option Agreement provides that the Trust "shall not transfer, agree 
to transfer, lease, agree to lease, charge, mortgage or grant any 
easement or otherwise deal with or dispose of the Property during the 
Option Period." This means that during the Option Period, the Property 
could not be sold to meet the liabilities of the Trust if it were to be 
dissolved. After the expiry of the Option Period, or if the Option 
agreement is removed there would be no such restriction so that the 
Property could potentially be sold to meet the liabilities of the Trust.  

4.9.4 If the Option agreement remains in place and the Trust is solvent but 
is wound up 

1) If the Trust was solvent on winding-up, so that there was no need for 
the Property to be sold to meet the liabilities of the Trust, the restriction 
on disposal in the Option Agreement as referred to in paragraph 4.9.2 
(4) above would mean that the Property could only be sold or 
transferred during the Option Period if the Council were to agree to the 
sale or transfer in question. 

4.9.5 If the Option agreement is removed and the Trust is solvent but is 
wound up

1) If the Trust was solvent on winding-up, so that there was no need for 
the Property to be sold to meet the liabilities of the Trust, the Trust 
would be wound up in accordance with its Memorandum and Articles of 
Association and its assets applied as set out in paragraph 4.9.3(1) of 
this report. 

4.9.6 Removal of the restriction on disposal in clause 3 of the Option 
Agreement 

1) From the Council's perspective, the risk in removing the restriction on 
disposals completely is that the Trust could not only enter into a lease 
with Gloucestershire College (the "College"), but could sell other parts 
of the Property or mortgage the Property.

2) The Option Agreement containing this restriction could be amended by 
supplemental agreement so as to allow the lease to the College to be 
granted. Careful thought would need to be given to consequential 
changes needed to the Option Agreement, particularly in relation to the 
definition of "the Option" in paragraph 1.1.2.  Consideration could also 
be given to amending this provision so as to allow other disposals if the 
Council gave prior written consent to the disposal in question.

Page 10



4.9.7 Position regarding rights of the Council to appoint Trustees of the 
Trust

1) There is no provision in the Memorandum and Articles as they stand 
that gives any right to the Council to appoint or nominate any persons to 
be Trustees of the Trust. The Memorandum and Articles provide for 
one-third of the Trustees to retire by rotation at each AGM and for 
persons to be appointed at the AGM to fill vacancies arising. The 
Trustees have a power to co-opt Trustees, but a co-opted Trustee only 
holds office until the next AGM.

2) The Trust’s negotiating position indicates that the Trust would be 
prepared to amend the Memorandum and Articles so as to provide that 
the Council would have the right to nominate one Trustee (see 
paragraph A of the Position Statement).  Such an amendment would 
need to be approved by a special resolution of the members of the 
Trust.

3) The Trust Articles could, however, be amended at some point in the 
future by a further special resolution of the members of the Trust to take 
out the Council's right to appoint a Trustee. A special resolution is a 
resolution passed either (a) at a general meeting by 75% of the 
members voting on the resolution in person or by proxy or (b) by way of 
written resolution by 75% of the members.

4) There are mechanisms that could potentially be used to prevent the 
provision in the Articles regarding the appointment of a Trustee by the 
Council being amended, such as the use of a member's agreement or 
the use of entrenched provisions under section 22 of the Companies Act 
2006. The Council would need to be a member of the Trust for any of 
these mechanisms to be used. The Trust's Articles currently provide for 
an 'open' membership, i.e that membership is open to any individual or 
organisation interested in promoting the objects who (i) applies to the 
Trust in the form required by the Trustees (ii) is approved by the 
Trustees and (iii) signs the Register of Members or consents in writing to 
become a member either personally or (in the case of a member 
organisation) through an authorised representative.  

4.9.8 Other points to note 

1) The restrictions in Part 7 of the 2011 Act do not apply where the transfer 
is to a charity with the same or very similar charitable objects for less 
than the best price that can reasonably be obtained. If therefore the 
Council or a third party were to establish a charity with the same or very 
similar objects to those of the Trust, a transfer of the Property from the 
Trust to the new charity could take place without the need to first obtain 
an order of the Charity Commission. 

2) There are a number of considerations to bear in mind when a local 
authority holds property as charity trustee, both at the stage of 
registering that charity with the Charity Commission and also on a 

Page 11



longer term basis in terms of the management and administration of the 
charity.

3) The Trust’s Negotiating Position suggests that the Option in the Option 
Agreement should be removed, but does then indicate that one 
approach would be for the option to only fall away if and when a 
successful Round 2 HLF bid was made by the Trust. If a position that is 
acceptable to both parties in relation to the Option can be reached, 
appropriate amendments could be made to the Option Agreement.

4) The Transfer contains a provision restricting the use of the Property, 
providing that:

"The Transferee will not use the Property for any purpose other than 
the preservation of a historical building and site including cultural 
education and recreational access for the public." 

It is likely that the legal advisers to the College would request that this 
wording be amended prior to the grant of any lease to the College by 
the Trust to make it clear that the use of part of the Property by the 
College was a permitted use. 

4.10 Subsequent negotiations and the Trust’s current position

4.10.1 A meeting was held on Tuesday 22nd October between officers representing 
the Council, the Trust and a legal representative on behalf of the College.  
At that meeting, it was agreed that the right to public access would be 
enshrined in the memorandum and articles of the company and the right to 
appoint directors would be contractually agreed, providing such 
appointment would be in consultation with the Trust.  The right to appoint 
directors which had been in dispute at Scrutiny was conceded.  The 2004 
S.106 agreement could therefore be removed and all aspects of the transfer 
agreement relating to the Council’s right to hold events at the Priory could 
also be removed, if Council was so minded.  The Council proposed 
retaining the Council’s option to repurchase in the event of the Trust’s 
failure and the Trust representatives went off to consider their position with 
regard to the Council having the option to repurchase. 

4.10.2 Following mature reflection, the Trust has arrived at a negotiation position a 
copy of which is attached at Appendix G. 

4.10.3 In essence, the Trust confirms its agreement to have a nominated trustee 
by the Council, with discussion and consultation on the appropriate skill 
sets.  The Trust would however, prefer to move to one trustee rather than 
two.

4.10.4 There is no difficulty with the right to public access and it is proposed to put 
this on the title deeds. 

4.10.5 On the matter of the reversion, the Trust has continued difficulties with this 
and believes that the reversion may not be in accordance with charity law 
and the Trust’s legal obligations under charity law.  The Council has taken 
external legal advice on this issue and the advice is set out in paragraph 4.9 

Page 12



above.  By way of compromise, the Trust is suggesting that the option 
should be offered until such time as financial security is attained.  This 
would be defined by the Trust as and when they have obtained a successful 
Round 2 HLF pass.  Their current application is for a Round 1 pass, and the 
typical time that will elapse to Round 2 is 18 months to 2 years.  By the time 
this is obtained, the Trust should also have signed a long lease on the 
Priory which will guarantee a secure income for maintenance purposes.
Your officers believe that this should be part of the definition and I 
understand this would be acceptable to the Trust. 

4.10.6 Your officers would recommend this to you as a sensible and effective 
solution.

5.0 Financial Implications 

5.1 There are no direct financial implications in the report as a result of the current 
debate.  However, it is possible that financial implications would arise for the 
Council should the Council come into possession of the Priory. 

5.2 In the position statement at Appendix F, the Trust has asked the Council to consider 
paying the Trust’s reasonable legal fees to make the necessary changes to the title 
documents and Trust Memorandum and Articles, if the Council agrees to the Trust’s 
proposals.

6.0 Legal Implications 

6.1 The subject of this report is the legal implications concerning possible release of 
covenants and these are covered at length in the body of the report. 

7.0 Risk & Opportunity Management Implications

7.1 The risks that are most critical at this point are:  

1) That the trustees resign and wind up the Trust and hand the property back to the 
Council. 

2) The HLF bid fails which may result in the same outcome. 
3) In the longer term, it is possible that the Trust might fail. 

8.0 People Impact Assessment (PIA) 

8.1 The PIA Screening Stage was completed and did not identify any potential or actual 
negative impact; therefore a full PIA was not required. 

9.0 Other Corporate Implications 
  Community Safety
9.1 None specific to the report. 
  Sustainability
9.2 None specific to the report. 
  Staffing & Trade Union
9.3 None specific to the report. 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

 
 

Meeting: Cabinet Date: 11th September 2013 

Subject: Llanthony Secunda Priory Trust 

Report Of: Cabinet Member for Regeneration & Culture 

Wards Affected: Westgate   

Key Decision: No Budget/Policy Framework: No 

Contact Officer: Richard Webb, Asset Manager 

Email: richard.webb@gloucester.gov.uk 

Tel: 396183 

Appendices: Extract from LSPT correspondence  

 
 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
 
1.0 Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 A brief overview of current situation and implications of agreeing to Llanthony 

Secunda Priory Trust’s (LSPT) requests, as set out in their letter dated 22.04.2013. 
 
2.0 Recommendations 
 
2.1 Cabinet is asked to RESOLVE that the restrictive covenants be removed in 

accordance with the request from LSPT. 
 
2.2 Cabinet is asked to request Planning Committee to vary the S106 agreement 

relating to the property. 
 
 Both the above are subject to agreeing a provision for continuing public access to 

the property. 
 
3.0 Background and Key Issues 
 
3.1 The subject property is owned by Llanthony Secunda Priory Trust.  The trust took a 

transfer of the property from Gloucester City Council in 2007.  The transfer included 
a number of covenants for the benefit of the City. 

 
3.2 Covenants included the right for the City Council to use the property for events (as 

defined within the agreement between British Waterways, the College and the City 
Council dated 13th Oct 2004) for a minimum of 12 days and a maximum of 20 days 
per annum. 

 

Agenda Item 12Page 83

APPENDIX A

Page 15



 2 

3.3 The tripartite agreement, dated 13th October 2004, sets out the Section 106 
Agreement as agreed and documented. 

 
3.4 For 21 years, from date of the transfer, the Council retain a right to buy back the 

property for £1 if the Trust or successors in title fail to meet certain obligations; if the 
Trust become insolvent, do not upkeep the property to an agreed standard, or if the 
Trust dismiss and do not replace Council representatives from the board. 

 
3.5  The Trust has a desire to develop and restore the medieval range in order to let this 

part of the property and generate income.  We are informed that the revenue will 
cross fund the continued maintenance of the site.  Gloscol have been identified as 
the potential tenant.  The Trust also has plans to develop the stable block.  We are 
informed that the project is supported by English Heritage. 

 
3.6 In order to develop the property the Trust would require significant funding.  They 

have identified Heritage Lottery Fund as the only real source capable of delivering 
the scale of funding required.  A grant application has been submitted to HLF in 
April 2013.   

 
3.7 LPST has requested that the Council discharge the obligations as set out in the 

original Section 106 Agreement.  LPST have also requested that the restrictions on 
title contained in the transfer document are deleted.  The Trust have set out the 
reasons for these requests in a letter dated 22.04.2013.  An extract from this 
correspondence is attached as Appendix 1. 

 
3.8 The aims of the Trust, as stated in their Articles of Association are as follows: 
 

1. To preserve for the benefit of the people of Gloucestershire and of the nation the 
historical, architectural and constructional heritage that may exist in and around 
Gloucestershire in buildings (including any structure or erection and any part of 
a building) of particular beauty or historical architectural or constructional 
interest. 

 
2. In particular to manage, restore and preserve for the benefit of the public 

Llanthony Secunda Priory in the City of Gloucester. 
 

3. To promote the use of Llanthony Secunda Priory for educational, cultural and 
recreational purposes including skills training. 

 
3.9 The Trust have held a number of events at the property that have been open to the 

public, these include: Stone Festival, Base for historic re-enactors, Giffords Circus, 
Public cinema screenings, outdoor theatre and various uses by neighbouring 
occupier Gloscol which will be further developed going forward. 

 
4.0 Implications of agreeing to request 
 
4.1 Removing restrictive covenants  
 

4.1.1 The use is currently restricted to; “preservation of a historical building and 
site including cultural education and recreational access for the public”.  By 
lifting this restriction we would allow LPST to use the property for any 
purpose (subject to gaining necessary planning consents).  

Page 84Page 16



 3 

4.1.2 The current arrangement places repairing obligations on LPST.  In the event 
that these are not met GCC have the ability to take back the property.   

 
4.1.3 By removing restrictive covenants LPST will be able to let the property in 

order to generate income.  We are informed this will be used to cross fund 
the repairs. 

 
4.1.4 GCC would no longer have the right to take back the property (as per 

circumstances mentioned in clause 3.4). 
 
4.1.5 There would no longer be the right of allowing public access. 

 
4.2 Discharge parts 1, 2 & 3 of Schedule 1 of Sec 106  
 

4.2.1 Alteration of the Agreement would be by way of deed of variation.  We 
believe that this would require consent from Planning Committee. 

 
4.2.2 GCC would waive the right to hold events at the property, either directly or 

via an approved 3rd party.  This right has not been well used but does offer 
potential for generating revenue. 

 
4.2.3 GCC would forego their right to “introduce rules relating to the use of the 

Priory grounds by the Owner (LSPT)” 
 

4.2.4 Part 3 relates to the Management Agreement and would result in the deletion 
of the following LSPT obligations:  

 
a) the beneficial use of the Priory for the benefit of the citizens of Gloucester.   
b) the future use and preservation of the Priory provided that the Council will 
not require that the Owner be responsible for the upkeep and maintenance of 
any buildings and structures within the Priory 

 
4.2.5 Relinquish formal right to fill 2 director positions on the board of LSPT.  This 

would result in a more autonomous structure for the Trust and less influence 
for the City Council. 

 
4.3 The purpose of the report is to outline the potential implications of the requests 

made by LSPT.  Once a decision has been made as to whether all, some or none of 
the requests are agreed to Officers will be able to advise on how any changes can 
be implemented.    

 
4.4 By way of conclusion, if Members agree to the recommendations contained herein 

the Trust will be granted a greater amount of autonomy.  They will be able to 
continue to develop the property which, in turn, will generate income to help cross 
fund the repairs and maintenance of this important heritage asset.  The City Council 
will forego their rights to hold events at the property but will seek to formally agree a 
continuation of right of access for the public. 

 

Page 85Page 17



 4 

5.0 Financial Implications 
 
5.1 Minimal.  
 
 (Financial Services have been consulted in the preparation this report.) 
 
6.0 Legal Implications 
 
6.1 All relevant legal implications have been considered. 
 
 (Legal Services have been consulted in the preparation this report.) 
 
7.0 People Impact Assessment (PIA):  
 
7.1 The PIA Screening Stage was completed and did not identify any potential or actual 

negative impact; there a full PIA was not required. 
 
8.0 Other Corporate Implications 
 
 Community Safety 

 
8.1 None. 
 
 Sustainability 
 
8.2 None. 
 
 Staffing & Trade Union 
 
8.3 None. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Background Documents: Extract from LSPT correspondence 
 

Page 86Page 18



Page 87
APPENDIX 1 TO APPENDIX A

Page 19



Page 88Page 20



APPENDIX B 
 

MINUTES OF OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 14 OCTOBER 2013 
 
CALL-IN OF THE CABINET DECISION RELATING TO LLANTHONY SECUNDA 
PRIORY  
 
The Chair drew Members’ attention to the guidance note which set out the procedures 
and time constraints to be adhered to during the debate. 
 
Councillor Jeremy Hilton addressed the Committee in support of the Call-In 
 
Councillor Jeremy Hilton summarised the reasons for his Call-In of the Cabinet decision 
made on 11 September 2013 relating to the Priory.   In particular, he wanted to be 
certain that removing or amending the covenants relating to the land was the correct 
thing to do and that the right for the Council to appoint two Directors to the Trust Board 
needed to remain.  He added that he was concerned that the financial and legal 
implications within the original report to Cabinet on 11 September 2013 including a letter 
from the Trust were not detailed enough.  Despite receiving further information from the 
Trust since his Call-In he was not convinced that the restrictive covenants needed to be 
removed.  Councillor Hilton queried if the Section 106 agreement could be amended to 
allow the grounds to be used for public access.  Councillor Hilton believed there should 
have been cross-party consultation on this matter leading to a decision on the Trust’s 
future being made by Full Council.   He stated that the decision taken by Cabinet was 
unsound for the reasons given in his Call-In Notice. 
 
Points of Clarification on Councillor Hilton’s submission 
 
The Chief Executive provided the Committee with points of clarification on matters 
relating to:- 
 

• Cabinet’s right to make the decision 

• The fact that some documents referred to by Councillor Hilton were Trust 
documents and that the Council had no automatic right to see them 

• The Heritage Lottery Fund (HLF) bid. 
 
Councillor Haigh asked Councillor Hilton why he believed the Cabinet decision was 
unsound.  Councillor Hilton responded that he had the right, as did any other Council 
Member, to call in the decision, for the reasons given in the Call-In notice. 
 
Councillor James addressed the Committee 
 
Councillor James explained that he would be sharing his presentation with Mr Jeremy 
Williamson who was representing the Trust. 
 

Page 21



Councillor James commented that he believed there was sufficient information within 
the body of the report and stressed the need to secure a sustainable long-term future 
for the Trust in order to build on the success of the organisation since its formation in 
2007. He urged the Committee to listen carefully to Mr Williamson’s presentation and to 
show confidence in the Trust.   
 
Mr Williamson gave a presentation which highlighted the following points:- 
 

• The history and importance of the site 

• The Trust’s objectives 

• The Trust’s achievements 

• Research carried out 

• The money already spent by the Trust to improve the site 

• Events held 

• Long term strategy and business plan 

• Trustees both current and future proposals – Trust keen to formalise role of City 
Councillors 

• Details of the HLF bid including anticipated outcomes 

• Legal constraints 

• Observations on step-in rights 
 
Points of Clarification on the Decision Maker’s submission 
 
The Chair enquired if the HLF audited the approved bids afterwards.  Mr Williamson 
confirmed that was the case. 
 
Councillor Haigh commented that the Section 106 agreement and the restrictive 
covenants were quite different and asked what the Trust was seeking to vary.  The 
Chief Executive responded that the documents were complex and that there were a 
range of issues tied to the Section 106.  It was intended to remove all the restrictive 
covenants. 
 
Councillor Haigh questioned paragraph 4.2.5 of the report which referred to the removal 
of the right to appoint two Director posts whilst Mr Williamson had suggested that there 
was no such right.  The Chief Executive confirmed that there was a difference of opinion 
on this matter; the Council being clear that there was still such a right.  However, as the 
Trust had conceded before the Cabinet decision its willingness to receive nominations, 
this was no longer relevant to the Committee’s deliberations. 
 
Councillor Beeley asked how the College intended to use the site.  Mr Williamson 
responded that the College wanted access and also to use the restored central 
buildings as an exhibition/conference centre. 
 
 
 
 

Page 22



Cross-examination of Witnesses by Committee 
 
Councillor Field queried whether the Trust would object to having City Councillors as 
directors if they lacked the necessary skills.  Mr Williamson said that it was important 
that all trustees had useful and appropriate skillsets as the trustees had to work to make 
things happen. 
 
Councillor Wilson was concerned that having ‘faith’ in the Trust as stated in the draft 
Cabinet minutes was not enough.  He also believed it should not be left to one or two 
nominees to secure public access.  Councillor James commented that the draft minutes 
did not entirely capture the discussion at Cabinet and stressed the importance of 
trusting organisations to work in accordance with their aims and objectives. 
 
Councillor Haigh remarked that there was not enough clarity arising from the 
discussions or from the draft minutes of Cabinet and that she was uneasy about the 
way the decision had been made.   She suggested that, as the original decision had 
been made by Council, that this matter should also be referred to Council.  Councillor 
James responded that the Trust was now mature and allowing the Call-In would have 
an impact on its future.  The Committee’s decision should not be based on the draft 
Cabinet minutes. 
 
Councillor S Witts noted a perceived contradiction between Mr Williamson’s 
presentation and paragraph 4.1.5 of the report which stated that there would no longer 
be any right to public access.  The Chief Executive confirmed that Cabinet had taken 
the decision in the full knowledge that access would be preserved, as the Trust had 
already committed to this. 
 
Councillor Chatterton said that he believed that the City Council had a responsibility to 
protect the site and that it should remain with the Council should the Trust fail.  He 
queried why continued public access should pose a problem and confirmed that he had 
no issue with the Section 106 which was an entirely separate matter for Planning 
Committee to consider, but was keen to keep the covenant.  In response, Mr Williamson 
said that he had to be guided by the lawyers.  The Heritage Lottery Fund was the only 
way of providing the necessary funding and unless the legal agreements were tied up 
there would be no anchor tenant and no Heritage Lottery monies. 
 
Councillor Wilson speculated whether the agreement could be revised with the 
covenants left as they were.  Mr Williamson remarked that his had not been discussed 
with the anchor tenant.  He added that the recent newspaper coverage regarding the 
Call-In had already damaged the Trust’s reputation. 
 
Summing Up - Councillor Hilton 
 
Councillor Hilton disagreed that any damage had been done to the Trust and said that 
effective scrutiny of a Cabinet decision was necessary to ensure it was the right one.  
He wanted to see the Trust succeed, but if it failed, he sought the reassurance of 

Page 23



knowing the grounds and buildings would come back to the City Council.  He 
commented that Councillors might not have the skillsets of architects and accountants 
but they would ensure that matters were dealt with in the public interest.  He asked the 
Committee to support the Call-In and refer it to Council.  
 
On a point of clarification, the Council’s Head of Legal and Policy Development 
reminded Members that when they were appointed to serve on outside bodies their 
primary obligation was to that organisation and they were not required to represent the 
public interest when acting in this capacity. 
 
Summing Up – Councillor James 
 
Councillor James stated that Cabinet was fully entitled to make this decision.  He 
considered that the Trust was now mature and competent and it needed the Heritage 
Lottery Funding to secure the future of the Priory.  He said that referring the Cabinet 
decision to Council could endanger this.  Councillor James suggested that the 
Committee should instead allow further discussions with the lawyers and the anchor 
tenant.  He added that there was a risk that unless the Heritage Lottery Bid succeeded, 
the Trust could decide to wind-up and pass the Priory back to the Council.  This was not 
something the administration wanted to happen. 
  
Decision of the Committee 
 
Having considered all the issues raised in the Call-In, the response of the Cabinet 
Member and Mr Williamson, and the advice of the Chief Executive and the Head of 
Legal and Policy Development, the Committee:- 
 
RESOLVED  That the Cabinet decision of 11 September 2013 (minute 35) relating 
to Llanthony Secunda Priory Trust be referred back to Council for 
reconsideration for the reasons stated in the Call-In request. 
 
In referring the matter back, the Committee requested that the following 
recommendation be added:- 
 

• That the issue of the covenant be clarified and separated from the Section 
106 agreement and simplified.  

 

Page 24



APPENDIX C

List of Heritage Assets

1) Grade 1 Mediaeval two storey roofed “Range” between Outer and Inner Courts.

Construction is timber framing above masonry. The building is known as the “Priory

Lodgings” and has an attached Grade 2 Listed Victorian Farmhouse. This is the central

focal heritage building in the site.

2) Grade 1 Remains of The “Great Stables” range on south side of inner court.

3) Grade 1 Remains of an impressive large Tithe Barn.

4) Grade 1 Remains of an impressive Outer Gatehouse.

5) Grade 1 Remains of precinct wall north of the outer gatehouse.

6) Grade 1 Remains of precinct wall south of the outer gatehouse.

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX D

Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



APPENDIX D

Page 53



APPENDIX E

Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



APPENDIX F
Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX G 

Llanthony Secunda Priory – position statement 

Cabinet resolved 

1. That the restrictive covenants be removed in accordance with the request from the 

Trust 

2. That planning committee be requested to vary the S106 relating to the property 

3. That the resolutions in 1 and 2 above be subject to agreeing a provision for 

continuing public access to the property and that the City Council shall have the 

continued right to nominate a Trustee 

Following the ‘call-in’ it would appear that various other demands have been made, through 

the scrutiny process, by councillors outside of Cabinet. Critically an ability for the property to 

revert to the City Council should the Trust fail. 

Llanthony Trustees have considered these issues in detail and would comment as follows 

A. The Trust accepts the continued right to nominate a Trustee by the City Council. 

Although in the light of limited numbers of Trustees, and the need for the trust to 

secure appropriate skill sets, the Trust wishes to stick with the cabinet decision i.e. 

one nominee. It is important to note that as the Trust moves forward, hopefully with 

HLF support, it will require all of its Trustees to undertake work and responsibilities in 

addition to attending board meetings. For these reasons the right to nominate a 

Trustee must be mutually agreed and based on skill sets and roles. This would be 

formally dealt with by amending the Trust Memorandum and Articles. 

B. The trust is absolutely wedded, through its articles, to public access through both our 

objectives and demonstrably by our actions over the last 6 years. The site has never 

been closed to the public and whilst access is sometimes restricted (canal side gate 

closed at night) this has been the result of police advice. EH and HLF grant support 

additionally requires public access to the site.  Following discussion, one way of 

providing even greater comfort would be to note the need for reasonable public 

access on the title deeds. 

C. Without removal of the covenants there is effectively no HLF bid and Councillors 

must understand the implications. The HLF bid is predicated upon a business plan 

that would allow the Trust to let part of the site and thereby secure a long term 

income to maintain and manage the other heritage assets on the site. The most 

effective way to do this is to remove the option agreement which explicitly precludes 

such action. As this option agreement also contains the reversion clause i.e. the 

ability of the City Council to re-acquire the site for a £1, then an alternative approach 

might be required. Further legal advice has identified that should the Trust, as a 

registered charity, fail there is every likelihood that the option would be set aside as it 

is limited to £1 and not the full market value i.e. the Council would not be able to buy 

the site back . Upon insolvency it is likely that the site would be sold to pay creditors 

and any residual monies applied to a similar charity. So, in essence the comfort value 

of the reversion clause is clearly very limited.  

 

Page 67



One approach would be for the Trust to offer the City Council the option, for what it is 

worth, until the point in time when financial security is attained. Such a condition 

precedent would be at the point of a successful Round 2 HLF pass. After that point 

the option simply falls away. In reality, if the Trust secures a round two HLF pass 

then it will be investing well over £3 million into the site, and therefore the City would 

have to pay a similar sum to re-acquire it.  

 

If the Trust HLF bid has been damaged by the negative press coverage then the 

Trustees may elect to voluntarily wind-up the Trust and allow the City to re-acquire 

for £1; this would be tenable as it would be voluntary and not as a result of 

insolvency. 

 

D. The S106 – again it would be prudent to lose the whole document as it too is noted 

on the title deeds and yet all actions pertaining to the construction of the College 

were discharged a long time ago. This may need the involvement of Gloucestershire 

County as there are clauses relating to highways works associated with the College – 

all completed many years ago. 

These actions i.e. loss of both the option agreement and S106 would allow the Trust the 

ability to act independently as I believe was the original intention in 2007. Equally with the 

proposed caveats it would enshrine the public access and the representation from the City 

Council, whilst also offering the City the ability to regain the site if the HLF bid is not 

successful. 

Clearly these proposals will need to be considered by Full Council but should the will of the 

Council be to retain the current agreements then the stark reality is that the Trust will not be 

able to deliver its ambitions as the current documentation, probably inadvertently rather than 

deliberately,  precludes the delivery of an effective business proposal. In which case the 

purpose of the Trust is negated and the best solution will be to return the site to the 

protection of the City Council and wind-up the Trust. 

The LSPT wishes to record that it does not regard the recent events as helpful or positive to 

the prospects of the HLF bid or to the Trust itself. The Trust has achieved an enormous 

amount, secured considerable investment and progressed a very high quality HLF grant 

submission. All of this has been done entirely through the volunteer time of a small number 

of dedicated trustees. Whilst the Trust respects the Council’s decision making processes, an 

unintended consequence of the public exposure to the ‘call in’ is that the Trust’s credibility 

has been undermined. In particular, councillors have made references to liquidators and 

official receivers (including on BBC Radio). The message received by many is that ‘the Trust 

is not to be trusted’. We do hope that the Trust’s credibility can be restored through reaching 

a swift agreement with the Council on the above matters, and through a successful HLF bid 

outcome. 

In the circumstances LSPT requests that, should the City Council agree to these proposals, 

that it also gives consideration to paying the Trust’s reasonable legal fees to enact these 

changes to the title documents and Memorandum and Articles. 

Jem Williamson, On behalf of Trustees 

Page 68


	Agenda
	4 Llanthony Secunda Priory
	Llanthony Appendix A
	Llanthony Appendix 1 to Appendix A
	Llanthony Appendix B - Mins of Scrutiny 141013
	Appendix C - List of Heritage Assets
	Appendices D to F
	Llanthony Appendix G


